

5391 Running Y Rd Klamath Falls, OR 97601 Phone: 541-850-5566 Fax: 541-850-5563 www.swwc.com

February 5, 2020

Public Utility Commission of Oregon Attn: Filing Center 201 High Street, S.E. P.O. Box 1088 Salem, OR 97308-1088

#### RE: Advice No. 20-1, Revises Tariff Language

Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc. (OWU-ML) submits this filing pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 757.205 and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 860-036-2010, for filing proposed tariff sheets. The tariffs have an effective date of March 6, 2020. No rate changes are proposed; therefore, there are no revenue changes associated with this filing.

In a separate filing, OWU-ML is requesting Commission approval of OWU-ML's proposed acquisition of Pinecrest Water Company Inc. (Pinecrest), a service-regulated water utility located in Bly, Oregon, approximately 63 miles from Running Y Ranch Resort. The transfer of Pinecrest's Commission-approved Exclusive Service Territory to OWU-ML is contemplated as part of the application. The transaction is structured as an asset acquisition in which current Pinecrest customers will become customers of OWU-ML and served under OWU-ML tariffs. Pinecrest does not have Commission-approved tariffs, but currently charges rates similar to those of OWU-ML.

OWU-ML's current tariffs state that the rates therein are applicable "to customers of the Utility at Running Y Ranch Resort, Ridgewater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon." OWU-ML proposes to revise its tariff language as follows, "to customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity." This language revision will allow OWU-ML's tariffs to be applicable to the newly acquired customers located in Bly.

Should you have any questions or comments regarding this filing, please contact Brian Bahr at (626) 543-2552 or bbahr@swwc.com.

Sincerely,

President, Oregon Water Utilities - Mountain Lakes, Inc.

**Enclosures** 

#### Containing Rules and Regulations Governing Water Utility Service

#### NAMING RATES FOR

# OREGON WATER UTILITIES – MOUNTAIN LAKES, INC. 5115 RUNNING Y ROAD KLAMATH FALLS, OR 97601

(541) 850-5566

Serving water in the vicinity of

Klamath County, Oregon

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020	Effective for Service on or after	March 6, 2020		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.				
Signature	CM AD				
Name & title	Craig Gott Presid	ent			

## **Table of Contents**

Schedule No.		Page No.
	Title Page	1
	Table of Contents	2
1	Residential Metered Rates	3
2	Commercial / Industrial Metered Rates	4
3	Irrigation (Non-Golf Course) Metered Rates	5
4	Golf Course Metered Rates	6
5	Miscellaneous Charges	7
6	Cross Connection Prevention Program and Backflow Prevention Device Services Fees	8
	Rules and Regulations	<b>1</b> 1

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on o	or after May	23, 2018	Take Published Library Take Published
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lake	s, Inc.		
Signature	Roha Liter			1.00 mg/ m3.40 .20 mg/ m3.4
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

#### RESIDENTIAL METERED RATES

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity.

**Applicable:** To residential premises.

#### Base Rate

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$33.20	None

Commodity Usage Rate

TIER	COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT	TIER CO	ONSUMPTION
Tier 1	\$1.542	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Up to	25,000 gal
Tier 2	\$1.992	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Above	25,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020	Effective for Service on or after	March 6, 2020		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.				
Signature	Consto				
Name & title	Craig Gott, Presid	ent			

# SCHEDULE NO. 2 COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL METERED RATES

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity.

Applicable: To commercial / industrial customers.

#### Base Rate

	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR	
SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$33.00	None
1 inch	\$82.50	None
1½ inches	\$165.00	None
2 inches	\$264.00	None
3 inches	\$495.00	None

Commodity Usage Rate

TIER	COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT	TIER CO	ONSUMPTION
Tier 1	\$1.542	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Up to	25,000 gal
Tier 2	\$1.992	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Above	25,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020	Effective for Service on or after	March 6, 2020		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.				
Signature	Collotto				
Name & title	Craig Gott, Presid	ent			

#### IRRIGATION (NON-GOLF COURSE) METERED RATES

(delivered under pressure)

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity.

<u>Applicable</u>: To irrigation (non-golf course) customers.

#### Base Rate

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$19.80	None
1 inch	\$37.95	None
1½ inches	\$43.56	None
2 inches	\$85.80	None

Commodity Usage Rate

COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT
\$0.602	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc. shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020	Effective for Service on or after	March 6, 2020		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.				
Signature	COLOTO				
Name & title	Craig Gott, Preside	ent			

#### **GOLF COURSE METERED RATES**

(delivered at atmosphere)

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity.

Applicable: To irrigation (golf course) customers.

#### Base Rate

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	N/A	None
1 inch	N/A	None
1½ inches	N/A	None
2 inches	N/A	None
12 inches	\$3,951.55	None

Commodity Usage Rate

COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT		
\$0.2235	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal		

#### **Special Provisions:**

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be
  made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the
  amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates
  for the amounts so estimated.

#### SCHEDULE NO. 5

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020	Effective for Service on or after	March 6, 2020			
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.				
Signature	coloto					
Name & title	Craig Gott, Presid	ent				

Advice No. 20-1

#### MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES

This schedule lists the miscellaneous charges included in the Utility's Rules and Regulations; refer to the appropriate Rules for an explanation of charges and conditions under which they apply.

Connection Charge for New Service (Rule Nos. 8 & 9)

Standard %-inch service At cost
Nonstandard %-inch service At cost
Larger than %-inch service At cost
Irrigation hookup (if provided on separate system)

At cost
At cost

Meter Test (Rule Nos. 19 & 20)

First test within 12-month period N/C Second test within 12-month period \$25

Pressure Test (Rule No. 39)

First test within 12-month period N/C Second test within 12-month period \$25

<u>Late-Payment Charge</u> (Rule No. 21) Pursuant to OAR 860-036-1400

Deposit for Service (Rule No. 5)

Pursuant to OAR 860-036-1220

Returned-Check Charge (Rule No. 22) \$20 each occurrence

Trouble-Call Charge (Rule No. 35)

During normal office hours \$25 per hour After normal office hours on special request \$50 per hour

Disconnection/Reconnect Charge (Rule Nos. 28 & 29)

During normal office hours \$25
After normal office hours on special request \$50

Unauthorized Restoration of Service (Rule No. 30) Disconnection/Reconnection

charge plus costs

Damage/Tampering Charge (Rule No. 28)

At cost

<u>Disconnect Site-Visit Charge</u> (Rule No. 29) \$25

Issue Date / Filing Date April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or aft			e on or after	May 23, 201	8	A track and a second of the se
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mountain	Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Kalent L	Let				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly,	/ice President				07:55 1:45 1:45 1:45 1:45

#### **CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM**

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

Purpose:

The Utility offers its customers backflow prevention device/double check valve

assembly (DCVA) testing, maintenance, and repair services.

AVAILABLE:

To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity.

APPLICABLE:

To residential, commercial/industrial, and irrigation premises with backflow

prevention devices installed at the meter.

#### PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

Service plans include:

- 1. Testing of newly installed devices prior to hook up to the Company's water system.
- 2. The required annual backflow prevention device testing by a state certified tester pursuant to Oregon Administrative Rules 333-061-0070 through OAR 333-061-0072.
- 3. Maintenance and repairs on the customer-owned backflow prevention device.

The Company offers the following plans and payment options for services provided by the Company:

- 1. Testing of new devices.
- 2. Required annual device testing.
- 3. Payment is due upon completion of services rendered.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5, 2020 Effective for Service on or after March 6, 2020
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.
Signature	appeto
Name & title	Craig Gott, President

#### **SCHEDULE NO. 6 (CONTINUED)**

#### **CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM**

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

#### **BILLING RATES**

At the time of testing, customers will be billed (itemized separately on customer water bill):

Double Check Devices			
New device 1" and under		\$45	
New device over 1"		\$60	
New device over 2"		\$85	
Commercial property	Additional	\$20 per device	
Triation device All and under		\$35	
Existing device 1" and under		•	
Existing device over 1"		\$45	
Existing device over 2"	0 1 177	\$85	
Commercial property	Additional	\$10 per device	
Additional device(s)* tested during same site visit	Discount 4	<\$10>	
*Excludes RPs			
Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventer Device (RP)			
1" and under		\$45	
Over 1"		\$60	
<u>Miscellaneous</u>		•	
Confined space entry		\$100	
Labor for maintenance and repair of device (1 hr min)		\$50 per hour	

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service or	or after May	23, 2018	Control of the Contro
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	lities – Mountain Lak	es, Inc.		
Signature	Lold Ka	N .			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President			

At cost

Parts

#### **SCHEDULE NO. 6 (CONTINUED)**

#### CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

#### OPT OUT CUSTOMERS WHO FAIL TO PROVIDE DCVA TEST RESULTS

OPT OUT customers who fail to provide the Utility with annual DCVA test results by the customer's annual deadline will be disconnected from water service pursuant to OAR 860-036-1680.

#### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS:**

- 1. The customer is under no obligation to use the Utility's DCVA services.
- 2. The customer can choose any qualified company or individual to test, maintain, and repair his/her DCVA.
- 3. Customers who choose not to use the Company's backflow prevention services must sign the written refusal and return it to the Company. Customers who choose to continue not using the Company's backflow prevention services must each year notify the Company of the name of the company chosen and date backflow test is scheduled
- 4. The Company will provide each customer with notification of the backflow prevention service options being offered. The notification shall include (1) an agreement for service that allows the customer to indicate which plan and payment arrangement the customer chooses, and (2) a written refusal of the Company's services.
- 5. The Company reserves the right to propose before the OPUC any change in the amount charged for the backflow prevention device testing, maintenance, and repair services.
- 6. Customers will be given the choice of accepting or rejecting a new agreement in advance of any rate increase.
- 7. The Company will separately itemize the backflow prevention device service fee on customer bills.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on	or after May 2	3, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.		
Signature	Roba L Kell			N424 1 2 13 154 24 172 1-1 173 173 1
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

Advice No. 18-1

#### **RULES AND REGULATIONS**

#### Rule 1: Jurisdiction of the Commission

Water systems are subject to regulation as provided under ORS Chapter 757

#### Rule 2: Definitions

- A. "Applicant" means a person who does not meet the definition of a customer, who applies for service with a water utility.
- B. "Commission" shall mean the Public Utility Commission of Oregon.
- C. "Commercial service" means water service provided by the water utility that the customer uses in the promotion of a business or business product that is a source of revenue or income to the customer or others using the premises.
- D. "Customer" means a person who is currently receiving water service and is entitled to certain rights as a customer under these rules. A residential customer retains customer status for 20 calendar days following voluntary disconnection of service and must be treated as a customer if he or she reapplies for service within that 20 calendar day period.
- E. "Customer's service line" is defined as the facilities used to convey water from the point of connection to the customer's point of usage. The customer owns and maintains the customer service line.
- F. "Residential service" means water service provided for domestic or irrigation purposes in a residential area and is not considered a commercial service.
- G. "Served" for purpose of delivery of any required notice or document, unless otherwise specifically noted, means: delivered in person, by personal contact over the telephone, or in writing delivered to the party's last known address. If delivered by US Mail, the notice is considered served two calendar days after the date postmarked, the date of postage metering, or deposit in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays.
- H. "Utility" shall mean: OREGON WATER UTILITIES CLINE BUTTE, INC.
- I. "Water service connection" is defined as the facilities used to connect a water utility's distribution network to the point of connection at the customer's service line. The water utility owns and maintains the water service connection.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for S	Service on or	after May	23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	lities – Mount	ain Lakes,	Inc.		74/91 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 1
Signature	Nolt L	(I)				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President				

#### APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

#### Rule 3: Information for Applicants and Customers (OAR 860-036-1100)

The Utility shall provide or be able to provide customers or applicants with the following information:

- A. A copy of its approved tariffs or statement of rates;
- B. A copy of the utility's rules and regulations applicable to the type of service being provided; and
- C. The option to receive electronic copies of all written notices to be issued on the customer's account.

#### Rule 4: Application for Service (OAR 860-036-1200)

Application for water service must be made for each individual property to be served. The application shall identify the name of the applicant, the service address, the billing address, the contact information where the applicant can be reached, the type of water service requested and its intended use, and the name to be used to identify the account, if different than the applicant's actual name. The applicant shall, at this time, pay any scheduled fees or deposits. An application is a request for service and shall not be accepted until the applicant establishes credit as set forth in OAR 860-036-1210.

An application for service may be required where:

- A. An applicant, who has not previously been served by the Utility, requests service; or
- B. Service has been involuntarily discontinued in accordance with the Utility and Commission rules, and service is requested; or
- C. Service has been voluntarily discontinued and a request to restore service has not been made within 20 days; or
- D. There is a change in the type of use to which the water is put, or the number of premises served.

# Rule 5: Establishment of Credit, Surety Agreements, Deposits, Interest, and Refunds of Deposits (OAR 860-036-1210, 1220, 1230, 1240, 1250, and 1260)

The utility may require an applicant or customer to pay a deposit as a guarantee of payment for services provided. Amounts held by a water utility may not exceed one-sixth of the actual or estimated annual billing for the premises. (OAR 860-036-1220)

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or	after	May 23, 2018		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes,	, inc.		And the second s	
Signature	Rult L. Kel				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		10 P 4 10 P 10 10 P 10		

The water utility may adjust the deposit amount when a customer moves to a new location within the water utility's service area, and the anticipated bill at the new residence will be at least 20 percent greater than the basis of the existing deposit. (OAR 860-036-1220(5))

The Utility shall pay interest on deposits at the rate established by the Commission. After the customer has paid its water service bills for 12 consecutive months without having had service discontinued for nonpayment, or did not have more than two occasions in which a shut-off notice was issued, and the customer is not then delinquent in the payment of bills, the Utility shall promptly and automatically refund the deposit plus accrued interest by **(check one)** (OAR 860-036-1250 and 1260):

	$\bigsqcup$	1.	Issuing	the	customer	а	refund	check,	or
--	-------------	----	---------	-----	----------	---	--------	--------	----

2. Crediting the customer's account; however, a customer is entitled to a refund upon request pursuant to OAR 860-036-1260

#### Rule 6: Customer Service Line (OAR 860-036-1300(2))

The customer shall own and maintain the customer service line and promptly repair all breaks and leaks. For non-metered service, the customer service line begins at the property line or utility-owned shut-off valve. For metered service, the customer service line begins on the customer's side of the meter or utility-owned shut-off valve. The Utility shall not be responsible for any damage or poor service due to inadequacy of the customer service line or any portion of the customer's plumbing. All leaks in the customer service line, faucets, and all other parts of the plumbing owned or controlled by the customer shall be promptly repaired so as not to waste water.

#### Rule 7: Separate Control of Service

All premises supplied with water will be served through service lines so placed as to enable the Utility to control the supply to each individual premise using a valve placed within and near the line of the street, the Utility right-of-way, or at the meter.

#### Rule 8: Water Service Connections (OAR 860-036-1300)

The water service connection is defined as the facilities used to connect the Utility's distribution network to the point of connection at the customer's service line, including all trenching, pipe, valves, and fittings. The Utility owns, operates, maintains, and replaces the service connection when necessary and promptly repairs all breaks and leaks. The customer shall not be

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service	ce on or after May 2	3, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain	Lakes, Inc.		n Ngasayan Ngasayan Ngasayan Mgasayan
Signature	164 L Cet			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

responsible for any damage or poor service due to inadequacy of the Utility's service lines or any portion of the Utility's plumbing.

#### Rule 9: Service Connection Charge (OAR 860-036-1300(3))

An applicant requesting permanent water service to a premise not previously supplied with permanent water service by the Utility may be required to pay the cost of the service connection, including or excluding the meter as provided in Rule No. 8 and the Utility's Miscellaneous Service Charges in this tariff.

#### Rule 10: Main Line Extension Policy (OAR 860-036-1310)

A main line extension is defined as the extension of the Utility's main line necessary to provide service to a customer when the property does not currently have main line frontage.

Main line extension charges, if any, are stated in the Utility's tariff or statement of rates.

The Utility maintains a main line extension policy that lists all applicable charges; and describes the advance and refund provisions, including a description of the mechanisms for collecting and rebating the amount charged equitably among the customers who paid for the cost of the line, and provides the time period during which the advance and rebate provisions apply.

For a period of five (5) years after construction of the requested main line extension, the utility shall also collect from any additional applicants whose service connections or service lines shall connect directly to said main line extension an amount per foot equal to the new applicant's proportionate share of the main line extension abutting footage used. The utility will then refund the share differential amount to those customers who previously incurred the cost of said main line extension. Refunds shall not exceed the amount originally advanced.

No part of the distribution system installed prior to the request for a main line extension shall be used to calculate any customer advance or refund.

#### Rule 11: Types of Use

Water service may be supplied for residential, commercial, irrigation, temporary construction, special contracts, fire prevention, and other uses. The Utility shall file separate rate schedules for each type of use and basis of supply.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Se	rvice on or afte	er May 23, 2	.018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mounta	in Lakes, Ind	o. Aleka	5	
Signature	Loter	L-Kell				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, \	/ice President				

#### Rule 12: Multiple Residences/Commercial Users

An apartment building, mobile home park, motel, trailer camp, duplex, townhouse, or any property consisting of more than one residential/commercial unit shall be considered to be equivalent to the number of equivalent dwelling units served when determining the customer count.

#### Rule 13: Utility Access to Private Property (OAR 860-036-1370, -1500)

Customers shall provide regular access to Utility-owned service lines that may extend onto the customer's premises for the purposes of reading meters, maintenance, inspections, or removal of Utility property at the time service is to be discontinued. Where the customer does not cooperate in providing reasonable access to the meter or to the premises, as required by law or to determine if a health or safety hazard exists, it is grounds for disconnection.

#### Rule 14: Restriction on Entering a Customer Residence (OAR 860-036-1330)

No Utility employee shall enter the residence of its customers without proper authorization except in an emergency when life or property is endangered.

#### REFUSAL OF SERVICE

#### Rule 15: Refusal of Service Due to Customer Accounts (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility may refuse to provide service if:

- A. The applicant has amounts owing under a tariff or statement of rates; or
- B The applicant for residential service has a roommate with amounts owing under a tariff or statement of rates, and the applicant lived with the roommate at the time the amounts owing were incurred.

Exception: If the applicant for residential service was a former residential customer with amounts owing, was involuntarily disconnected for non-payment, and applies for service within 20 calendar days of the disconnection, the Utility must provide service upon receipt of one-half of the amount owed with the remainder due within 30 calendar days. If the former customer fails to pay the remaining amounts within 30 calendar days, the Utility may disconnect service after issuing a 7-calendar day disconnection notice in accordance with OAR 860-036-1510(4).

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service	on or after Ma	y 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain L	akes, Inc.		- 173
Signature	Robert L. Leff			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

If service is disconnected, the Utility may refuse to restore service until it receives full payment of all amounts owing, including reconnection charges allowed under OAR 860-036-1580. Service shall not be refused for matters not related to water service.

Residential service shall not be refused due to obligations connected with nonresidential service. If service is refused under this rule, the Utility shall inform the applicant or customer of the reasons for the refusal and of the Commission's dispute resolution process.

#### Rule 16: Refusal of Service Due to Utility Facilities (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility shall not accept an application for service or materially change service to a customer if the Utility does not have adequate facilities, resources or capacity to render the service applied for, or if the desired service is of a character that is likely to unfavorably affect reasonable service to other customers.

For refusal of service under this rule, the Utility shall provide a written letter of refusal to the applicant within seven calendar days, informing applicant that the details upon which the Utility's decision was based may be requested.

The details will include, but not be limited to:

- A. Provide the information required by OAR 860-036-1100(2);
- B. Explain the specific reasons for refusing water service;
- C. Inform the applicant of the right to request details upon which the Utility's decision was based; and
- D. Inform the applicant of the right to dispute the refusal by contacting the Consumer Services Section at the contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2).

#### Rule 17: Refusal of Service Due to Customer Facilities (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility will refuse service to an applicant whose facilities do not comply with applicable plumbing codes or, if in the best judgment of the Utility, are of such a character that safe and satisfactory service cannot be given.

If service is refused under this rule, the Utility will provide written notification to the applicant within seven calendar days stating the reason(s) for refusal and providing information regarding the Commission's complaint process.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 201	18	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Kalet L	tall			· ·
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President			

#### **METERS**

#### Rule 18: Utility Meters (OAR 860-036-1350, 1370(3), and 1590)

The Utility owns, maintains, and operates all meters. Meters placed in service will be adequate in size and design for the type of service, set at convenient locations, accessible to the Utility, subject to the Utility's control, and placed in a meter box or vault between the street curb and property line. Each meter box or vault will be provided with a suitable cover.

Where additional meters are installed by the Utility or relocated for the convenience of the customer, the actual cost incurred for any meter relocation requested by the customer will be assessed.

The Utility shall have the right to set meters or other devices for the detection and prevention of fraud or waste without notice to the customer.

Each customer shall provide the Utility with regular access to the meter on the customer's property. Failure to permit access at reasonable times and after reasonable notice by the Utility requesting access is grounds for disconnection. Should damage result to the meter from molesting, tampering, or willful neglect on the part of the customer, the Utility shall repair or replace the meter and may bill the customer for the reasonable cost.

#### Rule 19: Meter Testing (OAR 860-036-1350)

All meters must be tested before installation or within 30 calendar days thereafter. Meters must be accurate to no more than two percent fast or slow under normal operating conditions. The Utility must prepare a test record and retain the current and immediately prior test records for all meters tested. The test record must include:

- A. Meter identification number and location;
- B. The reason for the test;
- C. The testing method;
- D. The beginning and ending meter readings;
- E. The test results and conclusion; and
- F. All data taken at the time of the test.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Lott L. Col			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		학자() 승규()	

#### Rule 20: Customer-Requested Meter Test (OAR 860-036-1360)

A customer may ask the water utility to test the water meter once every 12 months at no cost. The water utility must test the water meter within seven calendar days of the request, unless the customer fails to provide the water utility reasonable access to the meter. A customer or a designated representative has the right to be present at any on-site meter test. The test must be conducted at a mutually acceptable time. Within seven calendar days of performing the requested meter test, the Utility will provide a meter test report to the customer stating:

- A. The information required by OAR 860-036-1100(2);
- B. The name of the customer requesting the test and the service address where the meter was tested:
- C. The date the meter test was requested and the date the meter test was performed;
- D. The name of the person performing the test;
- E. The meter identification number and location;
- F. The beginning and ending meter readings; and
- G. The actual test results and conclusion.

If a customer requests more than one meter test within any 12-month period and the test results indicate that the meter is registering within the two percent performance standard, the customer may be assessed a reasonable charge for the test if the charge is included in the Utility's tariff or statement of rates. If the meter registers outside the two percent performance standard, the Utility may not charge the customer for the meter test.

#### **BILLING**

# Rule 21: Billing Information and Late-Payment Charge (OAR 860-036-1010(8), 1100(2), 1400, and 1430)

All bills, including closing bills, are due and payable within at least 15 days when rendered by deposit in the mail or other reasonable means of delivery, unless otherwise specified on the bill. A bill is considered served two calendar days after the date postmarked, the date of postage metering, or deposit in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays.

As near as practical, meters shall be read (check one) M monthly, I bimonthly, or
quarterly on the corresponding day of each meter reading or billing period. The Utility will
provide its customers with timely billings every month or as indicated in its tariffs or statement of

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	Robert L.	Kell		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President		

rates. A water utility must prepare bills, including opening and closing bills, from actual meter readings, unless conditions prevent an actual meter reading. If billings are based on estimated readings, the water utility must clearly identify the estimated meter reads and the estimated consumption on the bill. The water utility must verify the actual meter reading at least once every four months and adjust the customer's bill as needed.

All water service bills will show:

- A. Separate line items for past due balance, payments and credits, new charges, late fees, and total account balance;
- B. The date new charges are due;
- C. Calculation of new charges including base or flat rate, usage billing tiers and rates, beginning and ending meter readings, the dates the meter was read, rate schedule, billing period, and number of days in the billing period;
- D. The date any late payment charge was applied and an explanation of the terms of the late payment charge; and
- E. Any other information necessary for the customer to understand and compute the charges being assessed.

A late-payment charge may be assessed against any residential account that has an unpaid balance when the next bill is being prepared. The Utility may assess a late-payment charge against any non-residential account if payment is not received by the bill due date. The charge will be computed at the late-payment rate specified in the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule. The late-payment rate is determined annually by the Commission, and the Utility will be notified of the rate.

If an account is permitted to become delinquent, the Utility may disconnect water service by giving proper notice to the customer as provided in Rules 28 & 29, prior to or after the Utility assesses the late-payment charge.

#### Rule 22: Returned Payment Charge

The Returned Payment Charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule shall be billed for each occasion a customer submits any type of noncash payment (check, debit, electronic, etc.) that is not honored, for any reason, by a bank or other financial institution.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on c	or after May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes	s, Inc.		
Signature	6.62 6 Ed			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		8 MAN A	

#### Rule 23: Prorating of Bills

Initial and final bills will be prorated according to the number of days service was rendered and on the basis of a billing period of not less than 27 days or more than 33 days (required billing period). For metered services, a reasonable effort will be made to read the meter upon opening and closing a customer's account. Consumption will be charged at scheduled rates. Any minimum monthly charge will be prorated based on the required billing period.

#### Rule 24: Adjustment of Bills (OAR 860-036-1440)

When an overbilling occurs, the Utility will refund or credit amounts incorrectly collected during the 12-month period ending on the date on which the Utility issued the last incorrect bill. However, if the incorrect billing occurred more than three years before the incorrect billing is discovered, no refund or credit is required.

When an underbilling occurs, the Utility may issue a bill to collect amounts owing for the 12-month period ending on the date on the Utility issued the last incorrect bill. When such under collected amounts are billed to customers, the Utility will provide written notice to the customer detailing:

- A. The circumstances and time period of the billing error;
- B. The corrected bill amount and the amount of the necessary adjustment;
- C. The Commission's consumer complaint process; and
- D. The right for a current or former customer to enter into a time-payment agreement with the Utility.

The Utility will not bill for services provided more than two years before the underbilling was discovered. No billing adjustment will be required if a meter registers less than two percent error under conditions of normal operation. The Utility may waive rebilling or issuing a refund check when the costs make such action uneconomical.

#### Rule 25: Transfer Billings (OAR 860-036-1450)

If the Utility determines that a customer owes an amount from a closed account the customer previously held with the Utility, the Utility may transfer the closed account balance to the customer's current account.

The Utility will give the customer a separate, written notice of the transfer, including:

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on	or after May 23, 2	018
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utili	ties – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.	
Signature	Labor 6	Kel		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vio	ce President		

- A. The amount due under the prior account;
- B. The time period when the balance was incurred; and
- C. The service address where the balance owing was incurred.

If the customer has a balance owing on an existing time-payment plan, the customer may enter into a new time-payment plan incorporating all amounts owing. The Utility may not transfer a balance owing on a non-residential account to a residential account.

#### Rule 26: Partial Payment (OAR 860-036-1410)

Partial payments or one payment for more than one service, absent written instructions from the customer, will be applied in the following order:

- A. Past due regulated tariff or statement of rates services;
- B. Currently due regulated tariff or statement of rates services;
- C. Non-regulated services.

#### **DISCONNECTION OF WATER SERVICE**

#### Rule 27: Voluntary Discontinuance (OAR 860-036-1560)

A customer requesting disconnection of service must provide the Utility with at least seven calendar days' advance notice. The customer is responsible for all service provided for seven calendar days following the request for disconnection or until service is disconnected, whichever comes first; or if the customer identified a specific date for disconnection in excess of seven calendar days, the customer is responsible for service rendered up to and including the requested date of disconnection.

Rates are based on continuous service. Disconnect and reconnect transactions do not relieve a customer from the obligation to pay the base rate or minimum charge that accumulates during the period of time the service is voluntarily disconnected for up to 12 months. Should the customer wish to recommence service within 12 months at the same premise, the customer will be required to pay the accumulated minimum monthly charge or base rate as if service had been continuous. The reconnection charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule will be applicable at the time of reconnection.

Nothing in this rule prevents the Utility from temporarily interrupting service to protect the health and safety of its customers or to maintain the integrity of its system.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service of	on or after May 23, 2	018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain La	kes, Inc.		
Signature	Rolt L. Kell			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

#### Rule 28: Emergency Disconnection (OAR 860-036-1630)

The Utility may terminate service in emergencies when life or property is endangered without following the procedures set forth in OAR 860-036-1630. If an unscheduled interruption of service is required, the Utility will make a reasonable effort to notify the customers affected and the Consumer Services Section in advance of the interruption, report the unscheduled interruption to the Consumer Services Section, and restore service as soon as possible after resolving the issue, unless other arrangements are agreed to by the affected customers. When the emergency termination was through no fault of the customer, the Utility shall not charge the customer for disconnection or restoration of service.

Rule 29: Disconnection of Water Service Charge for Cause (OAR 860-036-1500, -1510, -1520, -1530, and 1550)

The Utility may disconnect service when:

- A. A customer fails to pay charges due for services rendered under a water utility tariff or statement of rates;
- B. A customer fails to pay a deposit, fails to timely provide a surety under OAR 860 036-1230 or comply with its terms, or fails to comply with the terms of a deposit installment agreement under OAR 860-036-1240;
- C. A customer fails to comply by the terms of a payment agreement under OAR 860 036-1240(3) or 860-036-1420;
- D. A customer provides false identification to establish or to continue service;
- E. A customer has facilities that do not comply with the applicable codes, rules, regulations, or the best practices governing safe and adequate water service, including compliance with the water utility's Cross Connection Control Program;
- F. A customer fails to provide reasonable access to the meter or premises;
- G. A customer tampers with water utility facilities or engages in theft of service or unauthorized use of water;
- H. A customer fails to comply with water restriction requirements under OAR 860-036-1670; or
- I. The Commission approves the disconnection of service.

If the disconnection is due to failure to pay a deposit, secure a surety agreement, abide by a deposit installment agreement, abide by the terms of a payment arrangement, or due to the theft of service, tampering with utility property, diverting water, or unauthorized use of water, the Utility will provide one 7-day written disconnection notice prior to disconnection. For other

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for	Service on or a	ofter May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mour	itain Lakes,	lnc.		
Signature	(alt 1. Left			**************************************	
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice Presiden	t		1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1	

disconnections, the Utility will provide two written notices in advance of disconnection: one 15-day notice and one 7-day notice.

If the disconnection is due to a customer's failure to comply with a water use restriction imposed under OAR 860-036-1670, the utility may disconnect the customer without issuing either a 15-calendar day or 7 calendar day disconnection notice.

#### The notices shall:

- A. Include the name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility,
- B. State that the customer's water service is subject to disconnection on or after a specific date:
- C. Provide the grounds for the proposed disconnection;
- D. State what actions the customer must take in order to avoid disconnection; and
- E. Include a statement that the customer may dispute the disconnection by contacting the Commission's Consumer Services Section.

If the disconnection notice is for nonpayment, the notice shall also:

- A. State the amount the customer must pay to avoid disconnection;
- B. Provide information about the customer's eligibility for a time-payment agreement provided in OAR 860-036-1420 for residential customers, unless the customer is being disconnected for failing to comply with an existing time-payment agreement or has engaged in theft of service, tampering with utility property, diverting water, or unauthorized use of water: and
- C. Include a statement that once service is disconnected, the water utility will reconnect service only after the customer reapplies for service and pays all applicable charges.

The 7-calendar day and 15-calendar day advance written notices of disconnection will be hand-delivered in person to the customer or adult at the premises, or sent by the US Mail to the customer's billing address and designated representative. Mailed notices are considered served two calendar days after deposited in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays. If the customer has requested to receive notices electronically, the Utility will provide an electronic notice in addition to the written notices.

Within 48 hours of disconnection, the Utility will make a good-faith effort to contact the customer or an adult at the residence and provide notice of the proposed disconnection. The notice may be provided in person or by telephone. The water utility must keep records to document how

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or	after May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes,	lnc.	
Signature	Rolt L. Coll		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

and when contact was made or attempted. If the Utility is unable to make personal contact, the Utility will leave a notice in a conspicuous place informing the customer that service has been disconnected.

#### Disconnection of Water Service to Tenants:

- A. If the Utility's records show that a residential billing address is different from the service address, the Utility shall mail a duplicate notice to the service address, unless the Utility has verified that the service address is occupied by the customer.
- B. If the Utility's records show that the service location is a master-metered, multi-dwelling service address, the Utility shall provide a duplicate of the 7-calendar day disconnection notice to each unit at the service address. The disconnection notice must be addressed to "Tenant." The envelope must bear a bold notice stating, "IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING DISCONNECTION OF WATER UTILITY SERVICE." Tenant notices may not include the dollar amount owing.
- C. The Utility shall notify the Consumer Services Section at least seven calendar days before disconnecting service to a master-metered, multi-dwelling premise.

#### Time Payment Agreements (OAR 860-036-1420)

Customers who are notified of pending disconnection, due to reasons other than theft of service, tampering, unauthorized use of water, or failure to abide by the terms of a Time Payment Plan, may choose between two Time Payment Agreement options. The Utility will offer such customers a choice of a levelized-payment plan and an equal-pay arrearage plan. The Utility and the customer may mutually agree to an alternate payment arrangement provided it be in writing and signed by all parties.

# <u>Disconnection for Failure to Comply With a Time Payment Agreement</u> (OAR 860-036-1510(4)(b))

A time-payment agreement disconnection occurs when a customer fails to comply with the terms of a written time-payment agreement between the customer and the Utility, or the time-payment agreement charge becomes delinquent. The Utility will give the customer a 7- day written notice before the water service may be disconnected.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	Backel	4		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President		

#### Rule 30: Disconnection, Reconnection and Field Visit Charge (OAR 860-036-1580)

#### Disconnection and Reconnection Charges

If service is disconnected pursuant to OAR 860-036-1500, the Utility may assess and require payment of the disconnect fee and reconnect fee stated in its tariff prior to reconnecting service.

#### Field Visit Charge

The Utility may assess a field visit charge whenever the Utility visits a residential service address intending to reconnect or disconnect service, but due to customer action, is unable to complete the reconnection or disconnection at the time of the visit. The field visit charge is listed in the tariff.

#### Rule 31: Unauthorized Restoration of Service (OAR 860-036-1590)

After water service has been disconnected or shut off at the curb stop or at the meter, if any person not authorized by the Utility should turn it on, the water service line may be disconnected without notice as provided by OAR 860-036-1510.

#### Rule 32: Unauthorized Use (OAR 860-036-1590)

No person shall be allowed to make connection to the Utility mains, or to make any alteration to service connections, or to turn a curb stop off or on to any premises without written permission of the Utility. If the Utility discovers that a customer damaged, tampered with, or engaged in unauthorized use of utility property facilities, the Utility shall notify the customer of the violations and may take one or more of the following actions:

- A. Repair or restore the facilities and charge the customer the costs incurred;
- B. Adjust the customer's prior billing for loss of revenue under applicable tariffs or schedule of rates;
- C. Initiate a service disconnection as provided by OAR 860-036-1510;
- D. Require a new application for service that accurately reflects the customer's proposed water use; and
- E. Assess a deposit for restored or continued service.

#### Rule 33: Interruption of Service (OAR 860-036-1630, -1640)

The Utility may perform an unscheduled interruption of service as necessary to protect the health and safety of its customers or to maintain the integrity of its system. If an unscheduled interruption of service is required, the water utility must:

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service	on or after May 2	23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mountain La	akes, Inc.		
Signature	RM 6. 1				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, \	/ice President			

- A. Make a reasonable effort to notify the customers affected and the Consumer Services Section in advance of the interruption;
- B. Report the unscheduled interruption to the Consumer Services Section at the contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2), and
- C. Restore service as soon as it is reasonably possible after resolving the issue, unless other arrangements are agreed to by the affected customers.

The Utility may schedule water service interruptions for maintenance and repairs in such a manner that reasonably minimizes customer inconvenience. The Utility will provide advance written notice to all customers affected by any scheduled service interruption, and will post the notice in the utility's office and on its website, if available. The notice will include:

- A. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility;
- B. The date, time, and estimated duration of the scheduled interruption;
- C. The purpose of the interruption;
- D. A statement cautioning customers to avoid using water during service interruptions to prevent debris in the customers' service lines; and
- E. The contact information for the Consumer Services Section provided in OAR 860 001-0020(2).

Notices of scheduled interruptions of service must be served by a door hanger or personal delivery to an adult at the affected premises at least five calendar days in advance of the service interruption or by US Mail at least ten calendar days prior to the service interruption. In addition electronic notice must be provided to customers who requested to receive notices electronically.

The Utility will keep a record of all scheduled service interruptions including time, duration, and cause of the scheduled service interruption.

#### Rule 34: Water Usage Restrictions (OAR 860-036-1670)

The Utility shall exercise due diligence to furnish a continuous and adequate supply of water to its customers. During times of water shortage, the Utility will equitably apportion its available water supply among its customers with regard to public health and safety. In times of water shortages, the Utility may restrict water usage after providing written notice to its customers and the Consumer Services Section. Notice will also be posted in the Utility's office and on its website, if available. The notification must state the reason and nature of the restrictions, the

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on	or after May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	ilities – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.		
Signature	Roll C	E/		New 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President			

date restrictions will become effective, the estimated date the restrictions end, and that failure to comply with the restrictions is grounds for disconnection.

If a customer fails to comply with the water restrictions after receiving written notification, the Utility will provide a separate written warning letter to the customer including:

- A. The date;
- B. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility:
- C. The customer's name, account number, mailing address, service address if different;
- D. The water use restrictions and statement of how the customer is violating those restrictions:
- E. A statement that the customer's water service is subject to disconnection on or after a specific date:
- F. A warning to the customer that failure to immediately comply with the restrictions may result in disconnection of service; and
- G. A statement that the customer may dispute disconnection by contacting the Consumer Services Section. The notice must include the Consumer Services Section's contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2).

If a customer fails to comply with the water restrictions after receiving written notification and the warning letter, the Utility will consult with the Consumer Services Section to determine if disconnection is appropriate.

#### **SERVICE QUALITY**

#### Rule 35: Adequacy of Water Service (OAR 860-036-1600)

The Utility will maintain its facilities according to industry rules, regulations, and standards and in such condition to provide safe, adequate, and continuous service to its customers.

The Utility will not intentionally diminish the quality of service below the level that can reasonably be provided by its facilities.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	hat be to		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

#### Rule 36: Trouble Call

The trouble-call charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule may be billed whenever a customer requests that the Utility visit the customer's premises to remedy a service problem and the problem is due to the customer's facilities.

#### Rule 37: Water Purity (OAR 860-036-1610)

The Utility will provide a domestic water supply that is free from bodily injurious physical elements and disease-producing bacteria and reasonably free from elements that cause physical damage to customer property, including but not limited to pipes, valves, appliances, and personal property.

#### Rule 38: Water Pressure (OAR 860-036-1650)

The Utility will maintain adequate water pressure. In general, water pressure measuring between 45 and 80 pounds per square inch in the water mains is considered adequate. However, adequate pressure may vary depending on each individual water system.

The Utility may temporarily reduce or increase water pressure for fire flows, noticed repairs and maintenance, scheduled or emergency flushing, and unscheduled or emergency repairs and outages.

#### Rule 39: Pressure Surveys (OAR 860-036-1650)

The Utility will maintain permanent pressure recording gauges at various locations to measure the system's water pressure, and will have a portable gauge to measure water pressure in any part of the system. The Utility will maintain all pressure gauges in good operating condition, test periodically for accuracy, and recalibrate or replace when necessary.

#### Rule 40: Customer-Requested Pressure Test (OAR 860-036-1660)

Upon customer request, the Utility will perform a water pressure test within seven calendar days of the request. The first pressure test in any 12- month period will be at no charge. If the customer requests an additional pressure test within any 12-month period at the same premises, the Utility will assess the customer a charge in accordance with the Utility's Miscellaneous Service Charges. The pressure will be measured at a point adjacent to the meter on the customer service line or other reasonable point most likely to reflect the actual service pressure.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities - Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	Lit L Kell		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

A customer or a designated representative has the right to be present at the pressure test and the test must be conducted at a mutually acceptable time.

The Utility will provide a written report to the customer within seven calendar days of the pressure test. The report will include:

- A. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility;
- B. The customer's name and service address where the pressure was tested;
- C. The date the pressure test was requested and the date the pressure test was performed;
- D. The name of the company or employee performing the test;
- E. The place where the pressure was measured;
- F. The actual pressure reading; and
- G. The conclusion based on the test result.

#### Rule 41: Utility Line Location (One Call Program)

The Utility and its customers will comply with the requirements of OAR 952-001-0010 through and including OAR 952-001-0090 (One Call Program) regarding identification and notification of underground facilities.

#### Rule 42: Cross Connection/Backflow Prevention Program (OAR 860-036-1680)

All customers must comply with the Utility's Cross Connection Control Program to protect the water system from contamination. A customer's failure to comply is grounds for disconnection under OAR 860-036-1500.

The Utility will comply with the rules and regulations for the Cross Connection/Backflow Prevention Program, as provided in ORS Chapter 333 and the Utility's approved Backflow Prevention tariff or statement of rates.

#### Rule 43: Maps and Records (OAR 860-036-1690)

The Utility will prepare and retain current maps and records of the entire plant showing size, location, character, and date of installation of major plant items, including but not limited to pumps, reservoirs, main lines, distribution lines, and valves.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for S	Service on or after	May 23, 2018	<b>3</b>	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mount	ain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Balt 6	Car				1.34
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President				

# **Containing Rules and Regulations Governing Water Utility Service**

#### NAMING RATES FOR

### OREGON WATER UTILITIES – MOUNTAIN LAKES, INC. 5115 RUNNING Y ROAD KLAMATH FALLS, OR 97601

(541) 850-5566

#### Serving water in the vicinity of

Klamath County Running Y Ranch Resort and RidgeWater, Klamath Falls, Oregon

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202018	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 2020</u> 18	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature				
Name & title	Craig GottRobert I	<del> Kelly</del> , <del>Vice</del> -President		

## **Table of Contents**

Schedule No.		Page No.
	Title Page	1
	Table of Contents	2
1	Residential Metered Rates	3
2	Commercial / Industrial Metered Rates	4
3	Irrigation (Non-Golf Course) Metered Rates	5
4	Golf Course Metered Rates	6
5	Miscellaneous Charges	7
6	Cross Connection Prevention Program and Backflow Prevention Device Services Fees	8
	Rules and Regulations	<b>1</b> 1

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on o	or after May	23, 2018	Take Published Library Take Published
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lake	s, Inc.		
Signature	Roha Liter			1.00 mg/ m3.40 .20 mg/ m3.4
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

#### **RESIDENTIAL METERED RATES**

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinityat Running Y Ranch

Resort, RidgeWater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon.

**Applicable**: To residential premises.

#### **Base Rate**

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$33.20	None

Commodity Usage Rate

TIER	COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT	TIER CO	ONSUMPTION
Tier 1	\$1.542	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Up to	25,000 gal
Tier 2	\$1.992	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Above	25,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202018	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 2020</u> 18	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature				
Name & title	Craig GottRobert I	Kelly, Vice President		

# SCHEDULE NO. 2 COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL METERED RATES

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity at Running Y Ranch

Resort, RidgeWater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon.

**Applicable**: To commercial / industrial customers.

#### Base Rate

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$33.00	None
1 inch	\$82.50	None
1½ inches	\$165.00	None
2 inches	\$264.00	None
3 inches	\$495.00	None

Commodity Usage Rate

TIER	COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT	TIER CO	ONSUMPTION
Tier 1	\$1.542	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Up to	25,000 gal
Tier 2	\$1.992	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal	Above	25,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202018	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 202018</u>
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature			
Name & title	Craig GottRobert L. Kelly, Vice-President		

#### **IRRIGATION (NON-GOLF COURSE) METERED RATES**

(delivered under pressure)

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinityat Running Y Ranch

Resort, RidgeWater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon.

**Applicable:** To irrigation (non-golf course) customers.

#### Base Rate

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	\$19.80	None
1 inch	\$37.95	None
1½ inches	\$43.56	None
2 inches	\$85.80	None

Commodity Usage Rate

COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT
\$0.602	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal

- 1. These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc. shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202018	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 202018</u>
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature			
Name & title	Craig GottRobert I	Kelly, Vice President	

#### **GOLF COURSE METERED RATES**

(delivered at atmosphere)

Available: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinityat Running Y Ranch

Resort, RidgeWater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon.

**Applicable:** To irrigation (golf course) customers.

#### **Base Rate**

SERVICE METER SIZE	MONTHLY BASE RATE	USAGE ALLOWANCE
5/8 inch or 3/4 inch	N/A	None
1 inch	N/A	None
1½ inches	N/A	None
2 inches	N/A	None
12 inches	\$3,951.55	None

Commodity Usage Rate

COMMODITY RATE	NO. OF UNITS	MEASURING UNIT
\$0.2235	Per Unit	1 unit = 1,000 gal

- These rates are based on continuous service. Discontinuation of service may not be employed to avoid monthly charges for service. See Rule No. 26, Voluntary Discontinuance.
- 2. Water used during the construction of buildings, etc., shall be metered. Charges shall be made at the rates specified in this schedule. When setting of a meter is impracticable, the amount of water used shall be estimated, and the charges shall be made at specified rates for the amounts so estimated.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202018	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 2020</u> 18
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature			
Name & title	Craig GottRobert L. Kelly, Vice President		

#### SCHEDULE NO. 5

#### MISCELLANEOUS SERVICE CHARGES

This schedule lists the miscellaneous charges included in the Utility's Rules and Regulations; refer to the appropriate Rules for an explanation of charges and conditions under which they apply.

Connection Charge for New Service (Rule Nos. 8 & 9)

Standard %-inch service At cost
Nonstandard %-inch service At cost
Larger than %-inch service At cost
Irrigation hookup (if provided on separate system)

At cost
At cost

Meter Test (Rule Nos. 19 & 20)

First test within 12-month period N/C Second test within 12-month period \$25

Pressure Test (Rule No. 39)

First test within 12-month period N/C Second test within 12-month period \$25

<u>Late-Payment Charge</u> (Rule No. 21) Pursuant to OAR 860-036-1400

Deposit for Service (Rule No. 5)

Pursuant to OAR 860-036-1220

Returned-Check Charge (Rule No. 22) \$20 each occurrence

Trouble-Call Charge (Rule No. 35)

During normal office hours \$25 per hour After normal office hours on special request \$50 per hour

Disconnection/Reconnect Charge (Rule Nos. 28 & 29)

During normal office hours \$25
After normal office hours on special request \$50

Unauthorized Restoration of Service (Rule No. 30) Disconnection/Reconnection

charge plus costs

Damage/Tampering Charge (Rule No. 28)

At cost

<u>Disconnect Site-Visit Charge</u> (Rule No. 29) \$25

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service	e on or after	May 23, 201	8	A track and a second of the se
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mountain	Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Kalent L	Let				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly,	/ice President				07:55 1:45 1:45 1:45 1:45

#### **SCHEDULE NO. 6**

#### CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

Purpose: The Utility offers its customers backflow prevention device/double check valve

assembly (DCVA) testing, maintenance, and repair services.

AVAILABLE: To customers of the Utility in Klamath County, Oregon, and vicinity Running Y Ranch

Resort, RidgeWater, and vicinity, Klamath Falls, Oregon.

<u>APPLICABLE</u>: To residential, commercial/industrial, and irrigation premises with backflow

prevention devices installed at the meter.

#### PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

Service plans include:

- 1. Testing of newly installed devices prior to hook up to the Company's water system.
- 2. The required annual backflow prevention device testing by a state certified tester pursuant to Oregon Administrative Rules 333-061-0070 through OAR 333-061-0072.
- 3. Maintenance and repairs on the customer-owned backflow prevention device.

The Company offers the following plans and payment options for services provided by the Company:

- Testing of new devices.
- 2. Required annual device testing.
- 3. Payment is due upon completion of services rendered.

Issue Date / Filing Date	February 5April 23, 202048	Effective for Service on or after	Ma <u>rch 6<del>y 23</del>, 202018</u>
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.	
Signature			
Name & title	Craig GottRobert I	<del> Kelly</del> , <del>Vice</del> -President	

# **SCHEDULE NO. 6 (CONTINUED)**

# **CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM**

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

# **BILLING RATES**

At the time of testing, customers will be billed (itemized separately on customer water bill):

Double Check Devices			
New device 1" and under		\$45	
New device over 1"		\$60	
New device over 2"		\$85	
Commercial property	Additional	\$20 per device	
Triation device All and under		\$35	
Existing device 1" and under		•	
Existing device over 1"		\$45	
Existing device over 2"	0 1 177	\$85	
Commercial property	Additional	\$10 per device	
Additional device(s)* tested during same site visit	Discount 4	<\$10>	
*Excludes RPs			
Reduced Pressure Backflow Preventer Device (RP)			
1" and under		\$45	
Over 1"		\$60	
<u>Miscellaneous</u>		•	
Confined space entry		\$100	
Labor for maintenance and repair of device (1 hr min)		\$50 per hour	

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service or	or after May	23, 2018	Control of the Contro
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	lities – Mountain Lak	es, Inc.		
Signature	Lold Ka	N .			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President			

At cost

Parts

# **SCHEDULE NO. 6 (CONTINUED)**

#### CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM

Backflow Prevention Device Services and Fees

#### OPT OUT CUSTOMERS WHO FAIL TO PROVIDE DCVA TEST RESULTS

OPT OUT customers who fail to provide the Utility with annual DCVA test results by the customer's annual deadline will be disconnected from water service pursuant to OAR 860-036-1680.

#### **SPECIAL PROVISIONS:**

- 1. The customer is under no obligation to use the Utility's DCVA services.
- 2. The customer can choose any qualified company or individual to test, maintain, and repair his/her DCVA.
- 3. Customers who choose not to use the Company's backflow prevention services must sign the written refusal and return it to the Company. Customers who choose to continue not using the Company's backflow prevention services must each year notify the Company of the name of the company chosen and date backflow test is scheduled
- 4. The Company will provide each customer with notification of the backflow prevention service options being offered. The notification shall include (1) an agreement for service that allows the customer to indicate which plan and payment arrangement the customer chooses, and (2) a written refusal of the Company's services.
- 5. The Company reserves the right to propose before the OPUC any change in the amount charged for the backflow prevention device testing, maintenance, and repair services.
- 6. Customers will be given the choice of accepting or rejecting a new agreement in advance of any rate increase.
- 7. The Company will separately itemize the backflow prevention device service fee on customer bills.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on	or after May 2	3, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.		
Signature	Roba L Kell			N424 1 2 13 154 24 172 1- 1 173 173 1
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

Advice No. 18-1

#### **RULES AND REGULATIONS**

#### Rule 1: Jurisdiction of the Commission

Water systems are subject to regulation as provided under ORS Chapter 757

### Rule 2: Definitions

- A. "Applicant" means a person who does not meet the definition of a customer, who applies for service with a water utility.
- B. "Commission" shall mean the Public Utility Commission of Oregon.
- C. "Commercial service" means water service provided by the water utility that the customer uses in the promotion of a business or business product that is a source of revenue or income to the customer or others using the premises.
- D. "Customer" means a person who is currently receiving water service and is entitled to certain rights as a customer under these rules. A residential customer retains customer status for 20 calendar days following voluntary disconnection of service and must be treated as a customer if he or she reapplies for service within that 20 calendar day period.
- E. "Customer's service line" is defined as the facilities used to convey water from the point of connection to the customer's point of usage. The customer owns and maintains the customer service line.
- F. "Residential service" means water service provided for domestic or irrigation purposes in a residential area and is not considered a commercial service.
- G. "Served" for purpose of delivery of any required notice or document, unless otherwise specifically noted, means: delivered in person, by personal contact over the telephone, or in writing delivered to the party's last known address. If delivered by US Mail, the notice is considered served two calendar days after the date postmarked, the date of postage metering, or deposit in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays.
- H. "Utility" shall mean: OREGON WATER UTILITIES CLINE BUTTE, INC.
- I. "Water service connection" is defined as the facilities used to connect a water utility's distribution network to the point of connection at the customer's service line. The water utility owns and maintains the water service connection.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for S	Service on or	after May	23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	lities – Mount	ain Lakes,	Inc.		74/91 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 1
Signature	Nolt L	(I)				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President				

#### APPLICATION FOR SERVICE

# Rule 3: Information for Applicants and Customers (OAR 860-036-1100)

The Utility shall provide or be able to provide customers or applicants with the following information:

- A. A copy of its approved tariffs or statement of rates;
- B. A copy of the utility's rules and regulations applicable to the type of service being provided; and
- C. The option to receive electronic copies of all written notices to be issued on the customer's account.

# Rule 4: Application for Service (OAR 860-036-1200)

Application for water service must be made for each individual property to be served. The application shall identify the name of the applicant, the service address, the billing address, the contact information where the applicant can be reached, the type of water service requested and its intended use, and the name to be used to identify the account, if different than the applicant's actual name. The applicant shall, at this time, pay any scheduled fees or deposits. An application is a request for service and shall not be accepted until the applicant establishes credit as set forth in OAR 860-036-1210.

An application for service may be required where:

- A. An applicant, who has not previously been served by the Utility, requests service; or
- B. Service has been involuntarily discontinued in accordance with the Utility and Commission rules, and service is requested; or
- C. Service has been voluntarily discontinued and a request to restore service has not been made within 20 days; or
- D. There is a change in the type of use to which the water is put, or the number of premises served.

# Rule 5: Establishment of Credit, Surety Agreements, Deposits, Interest, and Refunds of Deposits (OAR 860-036-1210, 1220, 1230, 1240, 1250, and 1260)

The utility may require an applicant or customer to pay a deposit as a guarantee of payment for services provided. Amounts held by a water utility may not exceed one-sixth of the actual or estimated annual billing for the premises. (OAR 860-036-1220)

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or	after	May 23, 2018		
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes,	, Inc.		And the second s	
Signature	Rult L. Kel				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		10 P 4 10 P 10 10 P 10		

The water utility may adjust the deposit amount when a customer moves to a new location within the water utility's service area, and the anticipated bill at the new residence will be at least 20 percent greater than the basis of the existing deposit. (OAR 860-036-1220(5))

The Utility shall pay interest on deposits at the rate established by the Commission. After the customer has paid its water service bills for 12 consecutive months without having had service discontinued for nonpayment, or did not have more than two occasions in which a shut-off notice was issued, and the customer is not then delinquent in the payment of bills, the Utility shall promptly and automatically refund the deposit plus accrued interest by (check one) (OAR 860-036-1250 and 1260):

	$\bigsqcup$	1.	Issuing	the	customer	а	refund	check,	or
--	-------------	----	---------	-----	----------	---	--------	--------	----

#### Rule 6: Customer Service Line (OAR 860-036-1300(2))

The customer shall own and maintain the customer service line and promptly repair all breaks and leaks. For non-metered service, the customer service line begins at the property line or utility-owned shut-off valve. For metered service, the customer service line begins on the customer's side of the meter or utility-owned shut-off valve. The Utility shall not be responsible for any damage or poor service due to inadequacy of the customer service line or any portion of the customer's plumbing. All leaks in the customer service line, faucets, and all other parts of the plumbing owned or controlled by the customer shall be promptly repaired so as not to waste water.

#### Rule 7: Separate Control of Service

All premises supplied with water will be served through service lines so placed as to enable the Utility to control the supply to each individual premise using a valve placed within and near the line of the street, the Utility right-of-way, or at the meter.

# Rule 8: Water Service Connections (OAR 860-036-1300)

The water service connection is defined as the facilities used to connect the Utility's distribution network to the point of connection at the customer's service line, including all trenching, pipe, valves, and fittings. The Utility owns, operates, maintains, and replaces the service connection when necessary and promptly repairs all breaks and leaks. The customer shall not be

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service	ce on or after May 2	3, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain	Lakes, Inc.		n Ngasayan Ngasayan Ngasayan Mgasayan
Signature	164 L Cet			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

responsible for any damage or poor service due to inadequacy of the Utility's service lines or any portion of the Utility's plumbing.

# Rule 9: Service Connection Charge (OAR 860-036-1300(3))

An applicant requesting permanent water service to a premise not previously supplied with permanent water service by the Utility may be required to pay the cost of the service connection, including or excluding the meter as provided in Rule No. 8 and the Utility's Miscellaneous Service Charges in this tariff.

#### Rule 10: Main Line Extension Policy (OAR 860-036-1310)

A main line extension is defined as the extension of the Utility's main line necessary to provide service to a customer when the property does not currently have main line frontage.

Main line extension charges, if any, are stated in the Utility's tariff or statement of rates.

The Utility maintains a main line extension policy that lists all applicable charges; and describes the advance and refund provisions, including a description of the mechanisms for collecting and rebating the amount charged equitably among the customers who paid for the cost of the line, and provides the time period during which the advance and rebate provisions apply.

For a period of five (5) years after construction of the requested main line extension, the utility shall also collect from any additional applicants whose service connections or service lines shall connect directly to said main line extension an amount per foot equal to the new applicant's proportionate share of the main line extension abutting footage used. The utility will then refund the share differential amount to those customers who previously incurred the cost of said main line extension. Refunds shall not exceed the amount originally advanced.

No part of the distribution system installed prior to the request for a main line extension shall be used to calculate any customer advance or refund.

#### Rule 11: Types of Use

Water service may be supplied for residential, commercial, irrigation, temporary construction, special contracts, fire prevention, and other uses. The Utility shall file separate rate schedules for each type of use and basis of supply.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Se	rvice on or afte	er May 23, 2	.018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mounta	in Lakes, Inc	o. Aleka	5	
Signature	Loter	L-Kell				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, \	/ice President				

#### Rule 12: Multiple Residences/Commercial Users

An apartment building, mobile home park, motel, trailer camp, duplex, townhouse, or any property consisting of more than one residential/commercial unit shall be considered to be equivalent to the number of equivalent dwelling units served when determining the customer count.

# Rule 13: Utility Access to Private Property (OAR 860-036-1370, -1500)

Customers shall provide regular access to Utility-owned service lines that may extend onto the customer's premises for the purposes of reading meters, maintenance, inspections, or removal of Utility property at the time service is to be discontinued. Where the customer does not cooperate in providing reasonable access to the meter or to the premises, as required by law or to determine if a health or safety hazard exists, it is grounds for disconnection.

# Rule 14: Restriction on Entering a Customer Residence (OAR 860-036-1330)

No Utility employee shall enter the residence of its customers without proper authorization except in an emergency when life or property is endangered.

#### REFUSAL OF SERVICE

## Rule 15: Refusal of Service Due to Customer Accounts (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility may refuse to provide service if:

- A. The applicant has amounts owing under a tariff or statement of rates; or
- B The applicant for residential service has a roommate with amounts owing under a tariff or statement of rates, and the applicant lived with the roommate at the time the amounts owing were incurred.

Exception: If the applicant for residential service was a former residential customer with amounts owing, was involuntarily disconnected for non-payment, and applies for service within 20 calendar days of the disconnection, the Utility must provide service upon receipt of one-half of the amount owed with the remainder due within 30 calendar days. If the former customer fails to pay the remaining amounts within 30 calendar days, the Utility may disconnect service after issuing a 7-calendar day disconnection notice in accordance with OAR 860-036-1510(4).

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service	on or after Ma	y 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain L	akes, Inc.		- 173
Signature	Robert L. Leff			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

If service is disconnected, the Utility may refuse to restore service until it receives full payment of all amounts owing, including reconnection charges allowed under OAR 860-036-1580. Service shall not be refused for matters not related to water service.

Residential service shall not be refused due to obligations connected with nonresidential service. If service is refused under this rule, the Utility shall inform the applicant or customer of the reasons for the refusal and of the Commission's dispute resolution process.

#### Rule 16: Refusal of Service Due to Utility Facilities (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility shall not accept an application for service or materially change service to a customer if the Utility does not have adequate facilities, resources or capacity to render the service applied for, or if the desired service is of a character that is likely to unfavorably affect reasonable service to other customers.

For refusal of service under this rule, the Utility shall provide a written letter of refusal to the applicant within seven calendar days, informing applicant that the details upon which the Utility's decision was based may be requested.

The details will include, but not be limited to:

- A. Provide the information required by OAR 860-036-1100(2);
- B. Explain the specific reasons for refusing water service;
- C. Inform the applicant of the right to request details upon which the Utility's decision was based; and
- D. Inform the applicant of the right to dispute the refusal by contacting the Consumer Services Section at the contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2).

# Rule 17: Refusal of Service Due to Customer Facilities (OAR 860-036-1270)

The Utility will refuse service to an applicant whose facilities do not comply with applicable plumbing codes or, if in the best judgment of the Utility, are of such a character that safe and satisfactory service cannot be given.

If service is refused under this rule, the Utility will provide written notification to the applicant within seven calendar days stating the reason(s) for refusal and providing information regarding the Commission's complaint process.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 201	18	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Kalet L	tall			· ·
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President			

#### **METERS**

# Rule 18: Utility Meters (OAR 860-036-1350, 1370(3), and 1590)

The Utility owns, maintains, and operates all meters. Meters placed in service will be adequate in size and design for the type of service, set at convenient locations, accessible to the Utility, subject to the Utility's control, and placed in a meter box or vault between the street curb and property line. Each meter box or vault will be provided with a suitable cover.

Where additional meters are installed by the Utility or relocated for the convenience of the customer, the actual cost incurred for any meter relocation requested by the customer will be assessed.

The Utility shall have the right to set meters or other devices for the detection and prevention of fraud or waste without notice to the customer.

Each customer shall provide the Utility with regular access to the meter on the customer's property. Failure to permit access at reasonable times and after reasonable notice by the Utility requesting access is grounds for disconnection. Should damage result to the meter from molesting, tampering, or willful neglect on the part of the customer, the Utility shall repair or replace the meter and may bill the customer for the reasonable cost.

# Rule 19: Meter Testing (OAR 860-036-1350)

All meters must be tested before installation or within 30 calendar days thereafter. Meters must be accurate to no more than two percent fast or slow under normal operating conditions. The Utility must prepare a test record and retain the current and immediately prior test records for all meters tested. The test record must include:

- A. Meter identification number and location;
- B. The reason for the test;
- C. The testing method;
- D. The beginning and ending meter readings;
- E. The test results and conclusion; and
- F. All data taken at the time of the test.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Lott L. Col			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		학자() 승규()	

#### Rule 20: Customer-Requested Meter Test (OAR 860-036-1360)

A customer may ask the water utility to test the water meter once every 12 months at no cost. The water utility must test the water meter within seven calendar days of the request, unless the customer fails to provide the water utility reasonable access to the meter. A customer or a designated representative has the right to be present at any on-site meter test. The test must be conducted at a mutually acceptable time. Within seven calendar days of performing the requested meter test, the Utility will provide a meter test report to the customer stating:

- A. The information required by OAR 860-036-1100(2);
- B. The name of the customer requesting the test and the service address where the meter was tested:
- C. The date the meter test was requested and the date the meter test was performed;
- D. The name of the person performing the test;
- E. The meter identification number and location;
- F. The beginning and ending meter readings; and
- G. The actual test results and conclusion.

If a customer requests more than one meter test within any 12-month period and the test results indicate that the meter is registering within the two percent performance standard, the customer may be assessed a reasonable charge for the test if the charge is included in the Utility's tariff or statement of rates. If the meter registers outside the two percent performance standard, the Utility may not charge the customer for the meter test.

#### **BILLING**

# Rule 21: Billing Information and Late-Payment Charge (OAR 860-036-1010(8), 1100(2), 1400, and 1430)

All bills, including closing bills, are due and payable within at least 15 days when rendered by deposit in the mail or other reasonable means of delivery, unless otherwise specified on the bill. A bill is considered served two calendar days after the date postmarked, the date of postage metering, or deposit in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays.

As near as practical, meters shall be read (check one) M monthly, I bimonthly, or
quarterly on the corresponding day of each meter reading or billing period. The Utility will
provide its customers with timely billings every month or as indicated in its tariffs or statement of

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	Robert L.	Kell		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President		

rates. A water utility must prepare bills, including opening and closing bills, from actual meter readings, unless conditions prevent an actual meter reading. If billings are based on estimated readings, the water utility must clearly identify the estimated meter reads and the estimated consumption on the bill. The water utility must verify the actual meter reading at least once every four months and adjust the customer's bill as needed.

All water service bills will show:

- A. Separate line items for past due balance, payments and credits, new charges, late fees, and total account balance;
- B. The date new charges are due;
- C. Calculation of new charges including base or flat rate, usage billing tiers and rates, beginning and ending meter readings, the dates the meter was read, rate schedule, billing period, and number of days in the billing period;
- D. The date any late payment charge was applied and an explanation of the terms of the late payment charge; and
- E. Any other information necessary for the customer to understand and compute the charges being assessed.

A late-payment charge may be assessed against any residential account that has an unpaid balance when the next bill is being prepared. The Utility may assess a late-payment charge against any non-residential account if payment is not received by the bill due date. The charge will be computed at the late-payment rate specified in the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule. The late-payment rate is determined annually by the Commission, and the Utility will be notified of the rate.

If an account is permitted to become delinquent, the Utility may disconnect water service by giving proper notice to the customer as provided in Rules 28 & 29, prior to or after the Utility assesses the late-payment charge.

#### Rule 22: Returned Payment Charge

The Returned Payment Charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule shall be billed for each occasion a customer submits any type of noncash payment (check, debit, electronic, etc.) that is not honored, for any reason, by a bank or other financial institution.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on c	or after May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes	s, Inc.		
Signature	6.62 6 Ed			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		8 MAN 1 4 13 A 1 4 2 A 1 4 4 2 A 1 4 4	

#### Rule 23: Prorating of Bills

Initial and final bills will be prorated according to the number of days service was rendered and on the basis of a billing period of not less than 27 days or more than 33 days (required billing period). For metered services, a reasonable effort will be made to read the meter upon opening and closing a customer's account. Consumption will be charged at scheduled rates. Any minimum monthly charge will be prorated based on the required billing period.

#### Rule 24: Adjustment of Bills (OAR 860-036-1440)

When an overbilling occurs, the Utility will refund or credit amounts incorrectly collected during the 12-month period ending on the date on which the Utility issued the last incorrect bill. However, if the incorrect billing occurred more than three years before the incorrect billing is discovered, no refund or credit is required.

When an underbilling occurs, the Utility may issue a bill to collect amounts owing for the 12-month period ending on the date on the Utility issued the last incorrect bill. When such under collected amounts are billed to customers, the Utility will provide written notice to the customer detailing:

- A. The circumstances and time period of the billing error;
- B. The corrected bill amount and the amount of the necessary adjustment;
- C. The Commission's consumer complaint process; and
- D. The right for a current or former customer to enter into a time-payment agreement with the Utility.

The Utility will not bill for services provided more than two years before the underbilling was discovered. No billing adjustment will be required if a meter registers less than two percent error under conditions of normal operation. The Utility may waive rebilling or issuing a refund check when the costs make such action uneconomical.

### Rule 25: Transfer Billings (OAR 860-036-1450)

If the Utility determines that a customer owes an amount from a closed account the customer previously held with the Utility, the Utility may transfer the closed account balance to the customer's current account.

The Utility will give the customer a separate, written notice of the transfer, including:

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on	or after May 23, 2	018
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utili	ties – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.	
Signature	Labor 6	Kel		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vio	ce President		

- A. The amount due under the prior account;
- B. The time period when the balance was incurred; and
- C. The service address where the balance owing was incurred.

If the customer has a balance owing on an existing time-payment plan, the customer may enter into a new time-payment plan incorporating all amounts owing. The Utility may not transfer a balance owing on a non-residential account to a residential account.

#### Rule 26: Partial Payment (OAR 860-036-1410)

Partial payments or one payment for more than one service, absent written instructions from the customer, will be applied in the following order:

- A. Past due regulated tariff or statement of rates services;
- B. Currently due regulated tariff or statement of rates services;
- C. Non-regulated services.

### **DISCONNECTION OF WATER SERVICE**

## Rule 27: Voluntary Discontinuance (OAR 860-036-1560)

A customer requesting disconnection of service must provide the Utility with at least seven calendar days' advance notice. The customer is responsible for all service provided for seven calendar days following the request for disconnection or until service is disconnected, whichever comes first; or if the customer identified a specific date for disconnection in excess of seven calendar days, the customer is responsible for service rendered up to and including the requested date of disconnection.

Rates are based on continuous service. Disconnect and reconnect transactions do not relieve a customer from the obligation to pay the base rate or minimum charge that accumulates during the period of time the service is voluntarily disconnected for up to 12 months. Should the customer wish to recommence service within 12 months at the same premise, the customer will be required to pay the accumulated minimum monthly charge or base rate as if service had been continuous. The reconnection charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule will be applicable at the time of reconnection.

Nothing in this rule prevents the Utility from temporarily interrupting service to protect the health and safety of its customers or to maintain the integrity of its system.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service of	on or after May 23, 2	018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain La	kes, Inc.		
Signature	Rolt L. Kell			
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President			

## Rule 28: Emergency Disconnection (OAR 860-036-1630)

The Utility may terminate service in emergencies when life or property is endangered without following the procedures set forth in OAR 860-036-1630. If an unscheduled interruption of service is required, the Utility will make a reasonable effort to notify the customers affected and the Consumer Services Section in advance of the interruption, report the unscheduled interruption to the Consumer Services Section, and restore service as soon as possible after resolving the issue, unless other arrangements are agreed to by the affected customers. When the emergency termination was through no fault of the customer, the Utility shall not charge the customer for disconnection or restoration of service.

Rule 29: Disconnection of Water Service Charge for Cause (OAR 860-036-1500, -1510, -1520, -1530, and 1550)

The Utility may disconnect service when:

- A. A customer fails to pay charges due for services rendered under a water utility tariff or statement of rates;
- B. A customer fails to pay a deposit, fails to timely provide a surety under OAR 860 036-1230 or comply with its terms, or fails to comply with the terms of a deposit installment agreement under OAR 860-036-1240;
- C. A customer fails to comply by the terms of a payment agreement under OAR 860 036-1240(3) or 860-036-1420;
- D. A customer provides false identification to establish or to continue service;
- E. A customer has facilities that do not comply with the applicable codes, rules, regulations, or the best practices governing safe and adequate water service, including compliance with the water utility's Cross Connection Control Program;
- F. A customer fails to provide reasonable access to the meter or premises;
- G. A customer tampers with water utility facilities or engages in theft of service or unauthorized use of water;
- H. A customer fails to comply with water restriction requirements under OAR 860-036-1670; or
- I. The Commission approves the disconnection of service.

If the disconnection is due to failure to pay a deposit, secure a surety agreement, abide by a deposit installment agreement, abide by the terms of a payment arrangement, or due to the theft of service, tampering with utility property, diverting water, or unauthorized use of water, the Utility will provide one 7-day written disconnection notice prior to disconnection. For other

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for	Service on or a	ofter May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mour	itain Lakes,	lnc.		
Signature	(alt 1. Left			**************************************	
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice Presiden	t		1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1	

disconnections, the Utility will provide two written notices in advance of disconnection: one 15-day notice and one 7-day notice.

If the disconnection is due to a customer's failure to comply with a water use restriction imposed under OAR 860-036-1670, the utility may disconnect the customer without issuing either a 15-calendar day or 7 calendar day disconnection notice.

#### The notices shall:

- A. Include the name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility,
- B. State that the customer's water service is subject to disconnection on or after a specific date:
- C. Provide the grounds for the proposed disconnection;
- D. State what actions the customer must take in order to avoid disconnection; and
- E. Include a statement that the customer may dispute the disconnection by contacting the Commission's Consumer Services Section.

If the disconnection notice is for nonpayment, the notice shall also:

- A. State the amount the customer must pay to avoid disconnection;
- B. Provide information about the customer's eligibility for a time-payment agreement provided in OAR 860-036-1420 for residential customers, unless the customer is being disconnected for failing to comply with an existing time-payment agreement or has engaged in theft of service, tampering with utility property, diverting water, or unauthorized use of water: and
- C. Include a statement that once service is disconnected, the water utility will reconnect service only after the customer reapplies for service and pays all applicable charges.

The 7-calendar day and 15-calendar day advance written notices of disconnection will be hand-delivered in person to the customer or adult at the premises, or sent by the US Mail to the customer's billing address and designated representative. Mailed notices are considered served two calendar days after deposited in the US Mail, excluding Sundays and postal holidays. If the customer has requested to receive notices electronically, the Utility will provide an electronic notice in addition to the written notices.

Within 48 hours of disconnection, the Utility will make a good-faith effort to contact the customer or an adult at the residence and provide notice of the proposed disconnection. The notice may be provided in person or by telephone. The water utility must keep records to document how

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or	after May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes,	lnc.	
Signature	Rolt L. Coll		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

and when contact was made or attempted. If the Utility is unable to make personal contact, the Utility will leave a notice in a conspicuous place informing the customer that service has been disconnected.

#### Disconnection of Water Service to Tenants:

- A. If the Utility's records show that a residential billing address is different from the service address, the Utility shall mail a duplicate notice to the service address, unless the Utility has verified that the service address is occupied by the customer.
- B. If the Utility's records show that the service location is a master-metered, multi-dwelling service address, the Utility shall provide a duplicate of the 7-calendar day disconnection notice to each unit at the service address. The disconnection notice must be addressed to "Tenant." The envelope must bear a bold notice stating, "IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING DISCONNECTION OF WATER UTILITY SERVICE." Tenant notices may not include the dollar amount owing.
- C. The Utility shall notify the Consumer Services Section at least seven calendar days before disconnecting service to a master-metered, multi-dwelling premise.

#### Time Payment Agreements (OAR 860-036-1420)

Customers who are notified of pending disconnection, due to reasons other than theft of service, tampering, unauthorized use of water, or failure to abide by the terms of a Time Payment Plan, may choose between two Time Payment Agreement options. The Utility will offer such customers a choice of a levelized-payment plan and an equal-pay arrearage plan. The Utility and the customer may mutually agree to an alternate payment arrangement provided it be in writing and signed by all parties.

# <u>Disconnection for Failure to Comply With a Time Payment Agreement</u> (OAR 860-036-1510(4)(b))

A time-payment agreement disconnection occurs when a customer fails to comply with the terms of a written time-payment agreement between the customer and the Utility, or the time-payment agreement charge becomes delinquent. The Utility will give the customer a 7- day written notice before the water service may be disconnected.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	Backel	4		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President		

## Rule 30: Disconnection, Reconnection and Field Visit Charge (OAR 860-036-1580)

#### Disconnection and Reconnection Charges

If service is disconnected pursuant to OAR 860-036-1500, the Utility may assess and require payment of the disconnect fee and reconnect fee stated in its tariff prior to reconnecting service.

#### Field Visit Charge

The Utility may assess a field visit charge whenever the Utility visits a residential service address intending to reconnect or disconnect service, but due to customer action, is unable to complete the reconnection or disconnection at the time of the visit. The field visit charge is listed in the tariff.

#### Rule 31: Unauthorized Restoration of Service (OAR 860-036-1590)

After water service has been disconnected or shut off at the curb stop or at the meter, if any person not authorized by the Utility should turn it on, the water service line may be disconnected without notice as provided by OAR 860-036-1510.

#### Rule 32: Unauthorized Use (OAR 860-036-1590)

No person shall be allowed to make connection to the Utility mains, or to make any alteration to service connections, or to turn a curb stop off or on to any premises without written permission of the Utility. If the Utility discovers that a customer damaged, tampered with, or engaged in unauthorized use of utility property facilities, the Utility shall notify the customer of the violations and may take one or more of the following actions:

- A. Repair or restore the facilities and charge the customer the costs incurred;
- B. Adjust the customer's prior billing for loss of revenue under applicable tariffs or schedule of rates;
- C. Initiate a service disconnection as provided by OAR 860-036-1510;
- D. Require a new application for service that accurately reflects the customer's proposed water use; and
- E. Assess a deposit for restored or continued service.

#### Rule 33: Interruption of Service (OAR 860-036-1630, -1640)

The Utility may perform an unscheduled interruption of service as necessary to protect the health and safety of its customers or to maintain the integrity of its system. If an unscheduled interruption of service is required, the water utility must:

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service	on or after May 2	23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water U	tilities – Mountain La	akes, Inc.		
Signature	RM 6. 1				
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, \	/ice President			

- A. Make a reasonable effort to notify the customers affected and the Consumer Services Section in advance of the interruption;
- B. Report the unscheduled interruption to the Consumer Services Section at the contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2), and
- C. Restore service as soon as it is reasonably possible after resolving the issue, unless other arrangements are agreed to by the affected customers.

The Utility may schedule water service interruptions for maintenance and repairs in such a manner that reasonably minimizes customer inconvenience. The Utility will provide advance written notice to all customers affected by any scheduled service interruption, and will post the notice in the utility's office and on its website, if available. The notice will include:

- A. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility;
- B. The date, time, and estimated duration of the scheduled interruption;
- C. The purpose of the interruption;
- D. A statement cautioning customers to avoid using water during service interruptions to prevent debris in the customers' service lines; and
- E. The contact information for the Consumer Services Section provided in OAR 860 001-0020(2).

Notices of scheduled interruptions of service must be served by a door hanger or personal delivery to an adult at the affected premises at least five calendar days in advance of the service interruption or by US Mail at least ten calendar days prior to the service interruption. In addition electronic notice must be provided to customers who requested to receive notices electronically.

The Utility will keep a record of all scheduled service interruptions including time, duration, and cause of the scheduled service interruption.

# Rule 34: Water Usage Restrictions (OAR 860-036-1670)

The Utility shall exercise due diligence to furnish a continuous and adequate supply of water to its customers. During times of water shortage, the Utility will equitably apportion its available water supply among its customers with regard to public health and safety. In times of water shortages, the Utility may restrict water usage after providing written notice to its customers and the Consumer Services Section. Notice will also be posted in the Utility's office and on its website, if available. The notification must state the reason and nature of the restrictions, the

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for Service on	or after May 23,	2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Uti	ilities – Mountain Lake	es, Inc.		
Signature	Roll C	E/		New 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, V	ice President			

date restrictions will become effective, the estimated date the restrictions end, and that failure to comply with the restrictions is grounds for disconnection.

If a customer fails to comply with the water restrictions after receiving written notification, the Utility will provide a separate written warning letter to the customer including:

- A. The date;
- B. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility:
- C. The customer's name, account number, mailing address, service address if different;
- D. The water use restrictions and statement of how the customer is violating those restrictions:
- E. A statement that the customer's water service is subject to disconnection on or after a specific date:
- F. A warning to the customer that failure to immediately comply with the restrictions may result in disconnection of service; and
- G. A statement that the customer may dispute disconnection by contacting the Consumer Services Section. The notice must include the Consumer Services Section's contact information provided in OAR 860-001-0020(2).

If a customer fails to comply with the water restrictions after receiving written notification and the warning letter, the Utility will consult with the Consumer Services Section to determine if disconnection is appropriate.

#### **SERVICE QUALITY**

# Rule 35: Adequacy of Water Service (OAR 860-036-1600)

The Utility will maintain its facilities according to industry rules, regulations, and standards and in such condition to provide safe, adequate, and continuous service to its customers.

The Utility will not intentionally diminish the quality of service below the level that can reasonably be provided by its facilities.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities – Mountain Lakes, Inc.		
Signature	hat be til		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

# Rule 36: Trouble Call

The trouble-call charge listed on the Miscellaneous Service Charges Schedule may be billed whenever a customer requests that the Utility visit the customer's premises to remedy a service problem and the problem is due to the customer's facilities.

#### Rule 37: Water Purity (OAR 860-036-1610)

The Utility will provide a domestic water supply that is free from bodily injurious physical elements and disease-producing bacteria and reasonably free from elements that cause physical damage to customer property, including but not limited to pipes, valves, appliances, and personal property.

#### Rule 38: Water Pressure (OAR 860-036-1650)

The Utility will maintain adequate water pressure. In general, water pressure measuring between 45 and 80 pounds per square inch in the water mains is considered adequate. However, adequate pressure may vary depending on each individual water system.

The Utility may temporarily reduce or increase water pressure for fire flows, noticed repairs and maintenance, scheduled or emergency flushing, and unscheduled or emergency repairs and outages.

## Rule 39: Pressure Surveys (OAR 860-036-1650)

The Utility will maintain permanent pressure recording gauges at various locations to measure the system's water pressure, and will have a portable gauge to measure water pressure in any part of the system. The Utility will maintain all pressure gauges in good operating condition, test periodically for accuracy, and recalibrate or replace when necessary.

# Rule 40: Customer-Requested Pressure Test (OAR 860-036-1660)

Upon customer request, the Utility will perform a water pressure test within seven calendar days of the request. The first pressure test in any 12- month period will be at no charge. If the customer requests an additional pressure test within any 12-month period at the same premises, the Utility will assess the customer a charge in accordance with the Utility's Miscellaneous Service Charges. The pressure will be measured at a point adjacent to the meter on the customer service line or other reasonable point most likely to reflect the actual service pressure.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018 Effective for Service on or after	May 23, 2018	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Utilities - Mountain Lakes, Inc.		5 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m 2 m
Signature	Lit L Kell		
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vice President		

A customer or a designated representative has the right to be present at the pressure test and the test must be conducted at a mutually acceptable time.

The Utility will provide a written report to the customer within seven calendar days of the pressure test. The report will include:

- A. The name, mailing address, telephone number, emergency telephone number, and email address or website of the Utility;
- B. The customer's name and service address where the pressure was tested;
- C. The date the pressure test was requested and the date the pressure test was performed;
- D. The name of the company or employee performing the test;
- E. The place where the pressure was measured;
- F. The actual pressure reading; and
- G. The conclusion based on the test result.

#### Rule 41: Utility Line Location (One Call Program)

The Utility and its customers will comply with the requirements of OAR 952-001-0010 through and including OAR 952-001-0090 (One Call Program) regarding identification and notification of underground facilities.

#### Rule 42: Cross Connection/Backflow Prevention Program (OAR 860-036-1680)

All customers must comply with the Utility's Cross Connection Control Program to protect the water system from contamination. A customer's failure to comply is grounds for disconnection under OAR 860-036-1500.

The Utility will comply with the rules and regulations for the Cross Connection/Backflow Prevention Program, as provided in ORS Chapter 333 and the Utility's approved Backflow Prevention tariff or statement of rates.

#### Rule 43: Maps and Records (OAR 860-036-1690)

The Utility will prepare and retain current maps and records of the entire plant showing size, location, character, and date of installation of major plant items, including but not limited to pumps, reservoirs, main lines, distribution lines, and valves.

Issue Date / Filing Date	April 23, 2018	Effective for S	Service on or after	May 23, 2018	3	
Issued By Utility	Oregon Water Util	ities – Mount	ain Lakes, Inc.			
Signature	Balt 6	(Ca)				1.34
Name & title	Robert L. Kelly, Vi	ce President				